#### **DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE**

Minute of meeting of the Development Management Committee held in the Council Chamber, Ground Floor, Council Building, 2 High Street, Perth on Wednesday 20 September 2017 at 10.00am.

Present: Councillors M Lyle (Convener), B Brawn (Vice-Convener), H Anderson, B Band, M Barnacle, H Coates, T Gray, I James, R McCall, R Watters and W Wilson.

In Attendance: Councillor L Simpson; N Brian, A Condliffe, M Petrie, A Rennie, D Salman, J Scott and R Stewart (all The Environment Service); C Elliott and D Williams (both Corporate and Democratic Services).

Apologies: Councillors E Drysdale and A Jarvis.

Councillor M Lyle, Convener, Presiding.

#### **508. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES**

The Convener welcomed everyone present to the meeting and apologies were noted as above.

#### 509. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no Declarations of Interest in terms of the Councillors' Code of Conduct.

#### 510. MINUTES

The minute of meeting of the Development Management Committee of 30 August 2017 (Arts. 459-464) was submitted, approved as a correct record and authorised for signature.

#### 511. DEPUTATIONS

In terms of Standing Order 59, the Committee agreed to hear deputations in relation to the following planning applications:

Planning Application No.	Art. No.
17/00886/FLM	512(1)(ii)
17/00760/FLL	512(2)(i)
17/00893/FLL	512(2)(ii)

### 512. APPLICATIONS FOR DETERMINATION

### (1) Major Applications

(i) 17/01201/AMM – ABERFELDY – Erection of 8 dwellinghouses (approval of matters specified in conditions 16/00478/IPM – Phase 2) at land 25 metres South West of 8 The Beeches, Aberfeldy – Report 17/294 – Bolfracks Estate

A Condliffe, Interim Development Quality Manager, advised the Committee that informative 4 of Report 17/294 should read: "This development will require the 'Display of notice while development is carried out', under Section 27C (1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1997, as amended, and Regulation 41 of the Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013. The form of the notice is set out in Schedule 7 of the Regulations and a draft notice is included for your guidance. According to Regulation 41 the notice must be:

- Displayed in a prominent place at or in the vicinity of the site of the development
- Readily visible to the public
- Printed on durable material."

#### Resolved:

**Grant,** subject to the following terms, conditions and informatives:

#### **Conditions**

- The proposed development must be carried out in accordance with the approved drawings and documents, unless otherwise provided for by conditions imposed on the planning consent.
- 2. Prior to the occupation of any residential plot, details of the specification including materials of all footpaths and cycleways shall be submitted to the Planning Authority for further approval. The agreed detail shall thereafter be implemented prior to the completion of the development.
- 3. Duntaylor Avenue shall not be used at any time by construction traffic associated with the development.
- 4. All matters regarding access, pedestrian and cycling facilities, public transport infrastructure, car parking, road layout, design and specification, including the disposal of surface water, shall be in accordance with the standards required by the Council as Roads Authority and to the satisfaction of the Planning Authority.
- 5. No part of the development shall be occupied until a Green Travel Plan (GTP), aimed to encourage more sustainable means of travel, has been submitted and approved in writing by the Council. The GTP will have

particular regard to provision for walking, cycling and public transport access to and within the site and will identify the measures to be provided, the system of management, monitoring, review, reporting and the duration of the plan.

- 6. Prior to the commencement of works on any part of the development, the applicant shall submit for the written approval of the Planning Authority an updated Construction Traffic Management Scheme (TMS) which shall include the following:
  - restriction of construction traffic to approved routes and the measures to be put in place to avoid other routes being used;
  - b) timing of construction traffic to minimise impact on local communities particularly at school start and finishing times, on days when refuse collection is undertaken, on Sundays and during local events;
  - c) arrangements for the cleaning of wheels and chassis of vehicles to prevent material from construction sites associated with the development being deposited on the road;
  - arrangements for cleaning of roads affected by material deposited from construction sites associated with the development;
  - e) arrangements for signage at site accesses and crossovers and on roads to be used by construction traffic in order to provide safe access for pedestrians, cyclists and equestrians;
  - f) details of information signs to inform other road users of construction traffic;
  - g) arrangements to ensure that access for emergency service vehicles are not impeded;
  - h) co-ordination with other major commercial users known to use roads affected by construction traffic;
  - i) traffic arrangements in the immediate vicinity of temporary construction compounds;
  - j) monitoring, reporting and implementation arrangements; and
  - k) arrangements for dealing with non-compliance. The TMS as approved shall be strictly adhered to during the entire site construction programme all to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority.
- 7. Measures to protect animals from being trapped in open excavations and/or pipe and culverts shall be implemented for the duration of the construction works of the development hereby approved. The measures may include creation of sloping escape ramps for animals, which may be achieved by edge profiling of trenches/excavations or by using planks placed into them

- at the end of each working day and open pipework greater than 150 mm outside diameter being blanked off at the end of each working day.
- 8. All road gullies within 500m of the SUDS pond shall have a Wildlife Kerb installed adjacent to it to allow amphibians to pass safely.
- 9. Prior to occupation of the development a minimum of 1 Swift brick and 1 bat brick shall be incorporated into each building at eaves height.
- Where it is intended to create semi-natural habitats, e.g. meadow or woodland, all species used in the planting proposals shall be locally native species of local provenance unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local planning authority.
- 11. Prior to the commencement of development, a site specific plan, detailing bin storage areas, kerbside collection locations shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority and thereafter undertaken in accordance with the approved details.
- 12. The stoves shall only operate on fuel prescribed and stored in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions. The stoves and flues and any constituent parts shall be maintained and serviced in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions. No changes to the biomass specifications shall take place without the prior written agreement of the Council as Planning Authority.

### **Justification**

The proposal is considered to comply with the Development Plan and there are no other material considerations that would justify a departure therefrom.

### **Procedural Notes**

- 1. Primary school financial contribution of £51,680 (8 x £6,460) is required and can either be paid up front or via a Section 75 legal agreement. Should the applicant not wish to pay the primary education contribution up front, a Section 75 legal agreement will be required before the decision notice can be released.
- 2. Any legal agreement should be concluded and completed within 4 months of the date of any Committee approval. Failure to conclude a legal agreement within 4 months will result in the planning application being re-assessed through failing to comply with the associated developer contributions policy and may be recommended for refusal under delegated powers.

#### **Informatives**

- The development hereby permitted shall be commenced no later than the expiration of two years from the date of this consent or from the date of subsequent approval of matters specified in conditions, or three years from the date of planning permission in principle, whichever is the later.
- 2. Under section 27A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) the person undertaking the development is required to give the planning authority prior written notification of the date on which it is intended to commence the development. A failure to comply with this statutory requirement would constitute a breach of planning control under section 123(1) of that Act, which may result in enforcement action being taken.
- 3. As soon as practicable after the development is complete, the person who completes the development is obliged by section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) to give the planning authority written notice of that position.
- 4. This development will require the 'Display of notice while development is carried out', under Section 27C (1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1997, as amended, and Regulation 41 of the Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013. The form of the notice is set out in Schedule 7 of the Regulations and a draft notice is included for your guidance. According to Regulation 41 the notice must be:
  - Displayed in a prominent place at or in the vicinity of the site of the development
  - Readily visible to the public
  - Printed on durable material.
- 5. The applicant is advised that in terms of Section 56 of the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984 he must obtain from the Council as Roads Authority consent to open an existing road or footway prior to the commencement of works. Advice on the disposal of surface water must be sought at the initial stages of design from Scottish Water and the Scottish Environment Protection Agency.
- 6. The applicant is advised that in terms of Section 21 of the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984 they must obtain from the Council as Roads Authority consent to construct a new road prior to the commencement of roadworks. Advice on the disposal of surface water must be sought at the initial stages of design from Scottish Water and the Scottish Environment Protection Agency.
- 7. The applicants are advised that they must apply to the Roads Authority for construction consent to form a new

- street. Please contact The Construction and Maintenance Manager, The Environment Service, Perth and Kinross Council, Pullar House, 35 Kinnoull Street, Perth, PH3 1JR.
- 8. The applicant is advised that the granting of planning consent does not guarantee a connection to Scottish Water's assets. The applicant must make a separate application to Scottish Water Planning & Development Services team for permission to connect to the public wastewater system and/or water network and all their requirements must be fully adhered to.
- 9. The applicant is advised that the works may need a license under the Water (Controlled Activities)
  Regulations 2005 (CAR). The applicant should contact SEPA's Perth Environmental Protection and Improvement Team (Tel: 01738 627989) in regard to this. The applicant should ensure that all works on site comply with the best practice guidelines laid out in SEPA's published Pollution Prevention Guidance, found at www.sepa.org.uk.
- The Council's Community Waste Adviser in the Environment Service should be contacted to clarify the bin storage and recycling requirements for the development.
- 11. The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as amended, it is an offence to remove, damage or destroy the nest of any wild birds while that nest is in use or being built. Planning consent for a development does not provide a defence against prosecution under this act.
- 12. Because of a disused tip approximately south of the site, the applicant should satisfy themselves that there is no risk to the proposed development. A watching brief during redevelopment is therefore recommended.
- 13. No work shall be commenced until an application for building warrant has been submitted and approved.
- 14. Please consult the Street Naming and Numbering Officer, The Environment Service, Perth and Kinross Council, Pullar House. 35 Kinnoull Street. Perth PH1 5GD.
- (ii) 17/00886/FLM KINROSS Application under Section 42 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 to develop land to modify Conditions 8 (Children's Play Area) and 9 (Access) of planning permission at land 300 metres North West of Lathro Farm, Kinross Report 17/295 Persimmon Homes Ltd

J Scott, Team Leader, requested that, should the Committee be minded to grant the application, condition 13 be revised to read "Prior to the implementation of this consent, a detailed delivery

plan confirming the phased delivery of the site and construction works shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Council as Planning Authority. For the avoidance of doubt, it shall provide full details of the phasing of delivery of all residential units, landscaped areas and open space (Country Park). Once approved, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the delivery plan, to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority."

Mr Scott also requested that informative 4 of Report 17/295 should read:

"This development will require the 'Display of notice while development is carried out', under Section 27C (1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1997, as amended, and Regulation 41 of the Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013. The form of the notice is set out in Schedule 7 of the Regulations and a draft notice is included for your guidance. According to Regulation 41 the notice must be:

- Displayed in a prominent place at or in the vicinity of the site of the development
- Readily visible to the public
- Printed on durable material."

### Resolved:

**Grant,** subject to the following terms, conditions and informatives, including a revised condition 24 and revised informative 4 as undernoted:

### **Conditions**

- The proposed development must be carried out in accordance with the approved drawings and documents, unless otherwise provided for by conditions imposed on the planning consent.
- Prior to the occupation of any residential plot, all matters regarding access, car parking, road layout, design and specification, including the disposal of surface water, shall be in accordance with the standards required by the Council as Roads Authority unless otherwise agreed in writing.
- 3. Prior to the occupation of any residential plot, details of the specification including materials of all footpaths and cycleways shall be submitted to the Planning Authority for further approval. The agreed detail shall thereafter be implemented prior to the completion of the development.
- 4. Permitted development rights associated with Classes 1A, 1B, 3A and 3B of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (Scotland) Order 1992 (as amended), or any subsequent comparable classes in future legislation relating to development within the

- curtilage of a dwellinghouse are hereby revoked in full for all terraced dwellings, namely plot nos.29-32, 37-40, 55-58, 93-96, 104-107, 119-122, 138-141, 152-159, 181-184, 297-300 of the approved Site Layout Plan.
- 5. The detailed landscaping and planting scheme as approved shall be commenced at the same time as commencement of the residential development and thereafter maintained to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority.
- 6. Any planting failing to become established within five years shall be replaced in the following planting season with others of similar sizes and species to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority.
- 7. The areas of public open space and parkland indicated on the approved landscape and planting drawings shall be planted in accordance with the open space standards of the Planning Authority and completed to phase with the adjacent dwellinghouses in accordance with a programme to be submitted to and agreed in writing with the Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development. The scheme shall thereafter be maintained to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority.
- 8. Within one month of this decision, full details of the location and timescales of the temporary children's play area to be located within Phase 1 shall be submitted and approved by the Planning Authority. The agreed detail shall thereafter be implemented prior to the occupation of the first dwelling in Phase 1. For the avoidance of doubt should Phase 2 not occur the children's play area within Phase 1 will become a permanent fixture.
- 9. Prior to the implementation of this consent, a detailed layout of the proposed children's play area indicated in the site layout plan shall be submitted for the further approval of the Planning Authority. The play area(s) shall be designed, laid out and equipped in accordance with the Planning Authority's current criteria for play area provision within six months of the occupation on the first residential unit in Phase Two. The play area and its facilities/equipment shall thereafter be maintained to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority.
- 10. Prior to the implementation of this consent, full details of proposed site boundary openings forming new accesses onto the A922 and Gallowhill Road shall be submitted to the Planning Authority for further written approval. The A922 opening details as approved shall thereafter be implemented prior to the occupation of any residential unit within Phase 1 of the development. The Gallowhill Road opening details as approved shall thereafter be

- implemented prior to the occupation of any residential unit within Phase 2 of the development.
- 11. Prior to the implementation of this consent, details of the frontage landscaping treatment along the M90 trunk road boundary shall be submitted to, and approved by, the Planning Authority, after consultation with Transport Scotland.
- 12. Prior to the occupation of the development, a barrier/boundary feature of a type approved by the Planning Authority in consultation with Transport Scotland shall be provided and maintained along the proposed boundary of the site with the M90 trunk road.
- 13. Prior to the implementation of this consent, a detailed delivery plan confirming the phased delivery of the site and construction works shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Council as Planning Authority. For the avoidance of doubt, it shall provide full details of the phasing of delivery of all residential units, landscaped areas and open space (Country Park). Once approved, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the delivery plan, to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority.
- 14. The developer shall ensure that during the construction of the development that all surface water is controlled, treated and discharged under the principles of SUDS all to the satisfaction of the Council as Flood Authority.
- 15. The discharge of any surface water drainage shall be limited to the Greenfield runoff rate as calculated in Section 4.3 of the Flood Risk Assessment within the Environmental Impact Assessment Environmental Statement Vol.3 Technical Appendix A. All discharge rates shall be agreed in writing by the Planning Authority in consultation with the Flooding Team prior to the commencement of any works on site.
- 16. Full drainage calculations and the final layout and depth of the proposed SUDS pond and associated infrastructure to be agreed in writing with the Council as Planning Authority, in consultation with Perth and Kinross Council Flooding Team. The agreed detail shall thereafter be implemented prior to the completion of development.
- 17. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning Authority the Finished Floor Level of all properties shall be a minimum of 600mm above the 200 year flood level.
- 18. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning Authority, the garden level of all properties shall be a minimum of 300mm above the 200 year flood level.
- 19. Prior to the implementation of this consent, the soffit level of all bridges/culverts shall be agreed in writing by Perth and Kinross Councils Flooding Team.

- 20. All existing trees and hedgerows shall be retained and protected by suitable fencing in accordance with BS5837 2012 (Trees in Relation to Construction), unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning Authority. The details of the protective fencing and its location shall be first submitted to and agreed in writing by the Planning Authority. No materials, supplies, plant, machinery, soil heaps, changes in ground levels or construction activities shall be permitted within the protected areas without the written consent of the Planning Authority and no fire shall be lit in the position where the flames could extend to within 5 metres of foliage, branches or trunks.
- 21. Prior to the implementation of this consent, a Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP), incorporating a Construction Method Statement (CMS), a Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP), a Site Waste Management Plan (SWMP), a Site Access Management Plan, a Drainage Management Plan (DMP) and Environmental Management Plan (EMP) detailing pollution prevention and control measures for all phases of the, construction and operation programmes will be submitted to and be approved in writing by the Planning Authority, in consultation with Scottish Environment Protection Agency and Scottish Natural Heritage. The CEMP shall be updated and submitted not less than two months prior to the commencement of the second phase and shall incorporate detailed pollution avoidance and mitigation measures for all construction elements. Thereafter the development shall be fully undertaken in accordance with the CEMP unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning Authority.
- 22. Prior to the implementation of this consent, the developer shall secure the implementation of a programme of archaeological works in accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation which has been submitted by the applicant, agreed by Perth and Kinross Heritage Trust, and approved by the Planning Authority. Thereafter the developer shall ensure that the programme of archaeological works is fully implemented and that all recording and recovery of archaeological resources within the development site is undertaken to the satisfaction of the Planning Authority in agreement with Perth and Kinross Heritage Trust.
- 23. Prior to the implementation of this consent, an evaluation for the potential of the site to be affected by contamination by a previous use should be undertaken.
  - I. the nature, extent and type(s) of contamination on the site

- II. measures to treat/remove contamination to ensure the site is fit for the use proposed
- III. measures to deal with contamination during construction works
- IV. condition of the site on completion of decontamination measures.

Prior to the completion or bringing into use of any part of the development the agreed measures to decontaminate the site shall be fully implemented as approved by the Council as Planning Authority. Validation that the scheme has been fully implemented must also be submitted to the Council as Planning Authority.

- 24. The hours of operation at the construction stage shall be Monday to Friday 07:00 to 19:00 hours, Saturday 08:00 to 13:00 hours and no workings on a Sunday, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Planning Authority.
- 25. Prior to the implementation of this consent, detailed design of the earth bunding and acoustic barriers along the M90 boundary shall be submitted in writing to the Planning Authority for approval before the development commences so that together with existing landscape features noise levels within habitable rooms of proposed dwellings on the western part of the development are reduced.
- 26. As recommended in Section 7 of the Environmental Statement, trickle ventilators shall be installed with passive extract ventilation systems to all habitable rooms within line of sight to the M90 trunk road and South Street, Milnathort to provide acoustic attenuation of up to 42 dBDn, in its open position.
- 27. Prior to the implementation of this consent, a site specific plan, detailing bin storage areas, kerbside collection locations and recycling facilities shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority and thereafter undertaken in accordance with the approved details.
- 28. Prior to the implementation of this consent, details of all front driveway screening shall be submitted to the Planning Authority for further approval. The agreed detail shall be thereafter implemented prior to the occupation of each dwelling.
- 29. No removal of hedgerows, trees or shrubs that may be used by breeding birds shall take place between 1<sup>st</sup> March and 31<sup>st</sup> August inclusive, unless a competent ecologist has undertaken a careful, detailed check of vegetation for active birds' nests immediately before the vegetation is cleared and provided written confirmation that no birds will be harmed and/or that there are appropriate measures in place to protect nesting bird

- interest on site. Any such written confirmation should be submitted to the local planning authority.
- 30. No works which include the creation of trenches or culverts or the presence of pipes shall commence until measures to protect animals from being trapped in open excavations and/or pipe and culverts are submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The measures may include creation of sloping escape ramps which may be achieved by edge profiling of trenches/excavations or by using planks placed into them at the end of each working day and open pipework greater than 150 mm outside diameter being blanked off at the end of each working day.
- 31. Lighting will be designed, and positioned in such a way as to prevent light spillage into adjacent watercourses and woodland.
- 32. No development, including earth moving, shall take place or material or machinery brought on site until protective fencing and warning signs have been erected on site in accordance with an approved Construction Method Statement. All protective fencing and warning signs will be maintained during the construction period in accordance with the approved details.
- 33. Pre-construction surveys shall be undertaken to ascertain the presence or absence of protected species and breeding birds and written confirmation that no protected species or birds will be harmed and/or that there are appropriate measures in place to protect said protected species and nesting bird interest on site. Any such written confirmation should be submitted to and agreed by the Planning Authority.
  - Where ecological surveys have identified the potential presence of roosting bats, no activities that could result in disturbance (such as tree felling, or associated operations) shall be carried out between the dates of 1st April and 1st October in any year. Any works undertaken during the specified periods should only be carried out under the direction of a licensed bat ecologist to ensure that an offence is not committed.
- 34. Where it is intended to create semi-natural habitats, all species used in the planting proposals as detailed in the landscape plans shall be locally native species of local provenance unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local Planning Authority.
- 35. All landscape maintenance measures shall be carried out in accordance with the details contained in the landscape plans as already submitted with the planning application and agreed with the Planning Authority.

36. All trees to be retained shall be protected in accordance with BS 5837 2012 Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction prior to any works commencing on site, and shall remain in place until all construction is completed.

#### **Justification**

The proposal is considered to comply with the Development Plan and there are no other material considerations that would justify a departure therefrom.

#### **Informatives**

- 1. This planning permission will last only for three years from the date of this decision notice, unless the development has been started within that period. (See section 58(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended).
- 2. Under Section 27A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) the person undertaking the development is required to give the Planning Authority prior written notification of the date on which it is intended to commence the development. A failure to comply with this statutory requirement would constitute a breach of planning control under section 123(1) of that Act, which may result in enforcement action being taken.
- 3. As soon as practicable after the development is complete, the person who completes the development is obliged by Section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) to give the Planning Authority written notice of that position.
- 4. This development will require the 'Display of notice while development is carried out', under Section 27C (1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1997, as amended, and Regulation 41 of the Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013. The form of the notice is set out in Schedule 7 of the Regulations and a draft notice is included for your guidance. According to Regulation 41 the notice must be:
  - Displayed in a prominent place at or in the vicinity of the site of the development.
  - Readily visible to the public.
  - Printed on durable material.

### (2) Local Applications

(i) 17/00760/FLL – KINROSS – Erection of 47 dwellinghouses and associated works at land 300 metres North West of Lathro Farm, Kinross – Report 17/296 – Springfield Properties PLC

#### Resolved:

**Grant**, subject to the following terms, conditions and informatives:

#### **Conditions**

- 1. The proposed development must be carried out in accordance with the approved drawings and documents, unless otherwise provided for by conditions imposed on the planning consent.
- Prior to the occupation of any residential plot, all matters regarding access, car parking, road layout, design and specification, including the disposal of surface water, shall be in accordance with the standards required by the Council as Roads Authority unless otherwise agreed in writing.
- 3. Prior to the occupation of any residential plot, details of the specification including materials of all footpaths and cycleways shall be submitted to the Planning Authority for further approval. The agreed detail shall thereafter be implemented prior to the completion of the development.
- 4. The detailed landscaping and planting scheme which is hereby approved shall be implemented as part of the site development programme and thereafter maintained.
- 5. Any planting failing to become established within five years shall be replaced in the following planting season with others of similar sizes and species to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority.
- 6. The areas of public open space and parkland indicated on the approved landscape and planting drawings shall be planted in accordance with the open space standards of the Planning Authority and completed to phase with the adjacent dwellinghouses in accordance with a programme to be submitted to and agreed in writing with the Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development. The scheme shall thereafter be maintained to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority.
- 7. The developer shall ensure that during the construction of the development that all surface water is controlled, treated and discharged under the principles of SUDS all to the satisfaction of the Council as Flood Authority.
- 8. The discharge of any surface water drainage shall be limited to the Greenfield runoff rate as calculated in

Section 4.3 of the Flood Risk Assessment within the Environmental Impact Assessment Environmental Statement Vol.3 Technical Appendix A. All discharge rates shall be agreed in writing by the Planning Authority in consultation with the Flooding Team prior to the commencement of any works on site.

- 9. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning Authority the Finished Floor Level of all properties shall be a minimum of 600mm above the 200 year flood level.
- 10. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning Authority, the garden level of all properties shall be a minimum of 300mm above the 200 year flood level.
- 11. Prior to the commencement of development details of all front driveway screening shall be submitted to the Planning Authority for further approval. The agreed detail shall be thereafter implemented prior to the occupation of each dwelling and permanently maintained thereafter.
- 12. Prior to commencement of development the CEMP approved under application 15/01512/FLM shall be updated to reflect the changes proposed in this application. The CEMP detailing environmental mitigation measures and construction method statements, including specific measures for environmental monitoring during construction, shall be submitted for the further written agreement of the Council as Planning Authority in consultation with SNH and/or SEPA. Such details shall be submitted not less than two months prior to the agreed scheduled commencement date and shall incorporate detailed pollution avoidance and mitigation measures for all construction elements. Thereafter the development shall be fully undertaken in accordance with the agreed CEMP.
- 13. The hours of operation at the construction stage shall be Monday to Friday 07:00 to 19:00 hours, Saturday 08:00 to 13:00 hours and no workings on a Sunday, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Planning Authority.
- 14. No works which include the creation of trenches or culverts or the presence of pipes shall commence until measures to protect animals from being trapped in open excavations and/or pipe and culverts are submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The measures may include creation of sloping escape ramps which may be achieved by edge profiling of trenches/excavations or by using planks placed into them at the end of each working day and open pipework greater than 150 mm outside diameter being blanked off at the end of each working day.

- 15. Lighting will be designed, and positioned in such a way as to prevent light spillage into adjacent watercourses and woodland.
- 16. No development, including earth moving, shall take place or material or machinery brought on site until protective fencing and warning signs have been erected on site in accordance with an approved Construction Method Statement. All protective fencing and warning signs will be maintained during the construction period in accordance with the approved details.
- 17. Should the development not commence within 12 months of any approval then further preconstruction surveys shall be undertaken to ascertain the presence or absence of protected species and breeding birds and written confirmation that no protected species or birds will be harmed and/or that there are appropriate measures in place to protect said protected species and nesting bird interest on site. Any such written confirmation should be submitted to the local planning authority.
- 18. All trees to be retained shall be protected in accordance with BS 5837 2012 Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction prior to any works commencing on site, and shall remain in place until all construction is completed.
- 19. All plant or equipment shall be so enclosed, attenuated and/or maintained such that any noise therefrom shall not exceed Noise Rating 35 between 0700 and 2300 hours daily, or Noise Rating 25 between 2300 and 0700 hours daily, within any neighbouring residential property, with all windows slightly open, when measured and/ or calculated and plotted on a rating curve chart.

#### **Justification**

The proposal is considered to comply with the Development Plan and there are no other material considerations that would justify a departure therefrom.

#### **Procedural Notes**

- 1. Consent shall not to be issued until a Section 75
  Agreement relating to developer contributions has been completed and signed. Affordable housing contributions will require 35.25 (47 11.75) affordable units to be provided as part of this application with contributions for primary education provision of £227,715 (35.25 x £6.460).
- 2. The legal agreement should be concluded and completed within 4 months of the date of any Committee approval. Failure to conclude a legal agreement within 4 months will result in the planning application being re-assessed

through failing to comply with the associated developer contributions policy and may be recommended for refusal under delegated powers.

### **Informatives**

- 1. This planning permission will last only for three years from the date of this decision notice, unless the development has been started within that period. (See section 58(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended).
- 2. Under Section 27A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) the person undertaking the development is required to give the Planning Authority prior written notification of the date on which it is intended to commence the development. A failure to comply with this statutory requirement would constitute a breach of planning control under section 123(1) of that Act, which may result in enforcement action being taken.
- 3. As soon as practicable after the development is complete, the person who completes the development is obliged by Section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) to give the Planning Authority written notice of that position.
- 4. The applicants are advised that they must apply to the Roads Authority, for construction consent to form a new street. Please contact The Construction and Maintenance Manager, The Environment Service, Perth and Kinross Council, The Atrium, Glover Street, Perth.
- Please consult the Street Naming and Numbering Officer, The Environment Service, Perth and Kinross Council, Pullar House, 35 Kinnoull Street, Perth PH1 5GD
- 6. The applicant is advised that the granting of planning consent does not guarantee a connection to Scottish Water's assets. The applicant must make a separate application to Scottish Water Planning & Development Services team for permission to connect to the public wastewater system and/or water network and all their requirements must be fully adhered to.
- 7. No work shall be commenced until an application for building warrant has been submitted and approved.
- 8. The development shall be in accordance with the Council's Developer Contributions and Affordable Housing Policy approved in April 2016 which requires a 25% allocation of affordable units within the development all to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority.
- 9. All domestic properties require an appropriate storage area for a minimum of 3 x 240 litre bins (1 for general waste, 1 for garden & food waste and 1 for dry mixed

recyclates/paper) and suitable access/surface to wheel the bins from the storage area to the kerbside where they must be presented for collection.

**Bin Dimensions** 

Capacity (litres) Width (mm) Height (mm) Depth (mm) 240 580 1100 740

- 10. The applicant is reminded that, should any protected species be present a licence may be required from Scottish Natural Heritage to disturb a protected species. Failure to obtain a licence may constitute a criminal act under the Habitats Regulations and penalties are severe for non-compliance.
- 11. The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as amended, it is an offence to remove, damage or destroy the nest of any wild birds while that nest is in use or being built. Planning consent for a development does not provide a defence against prosecution under this act.
- (ii) 17/00893/FLL KINROSS Erection of 6 dwellinghouses, formation of open space, landscaping and infrastructure works for plots 1-6, relocation of SUDS basin, pump station and erection of substation (revised layout and design)(in part retrospect) at land 300 metres North West of Lathro Farm, Kinross Report 17/297 Persimmon Homes Ltd

#### Resolved:

**Grant,** subject to the following terms, conditions and informatives:

#### **Conditions**

- 1. The proposed development must be carried out in accordance with the approved drawings and documents, unless otherwise provided for by conditions imposed on the planning consent.
- Prior to the occupation of any residential plot, all matters regarding access, car parking, road layout, design and specification, including the disposal of surface water, shall be in accordance with the standards required by the Council as Roads Authority unless otherwise agreed in writing.
- Prior to the occupation of any residential plot, details of the specification including materials of all footpaths and cycleways shall be submitted to the Planning Authority for further approval. The agreed detail shall thereafter be implemented prior to the completion of the development.
- 4. Within two months of the date of this decision notice the detailed landscaping and planting scheme as approved under 15/01512/FLM shall be updated to reflect the

revisions set out in this application. Details of the landscaping and path network in relation to the SUDS shall be included within the scheme and the SUDS should be designed to contribute both to biodiversity and public amenity. The scheme shall be submitted for approval in writing by the Planning Authority and the scheme as approved shall be implemented and thereafter maintained.

- 5. Any planting failing to become established within five years shall be replaced in the following planting season with others of similar sizes and species to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority.
- 6. The areas of public open space and parkland indicated on the approved landscape and planting drawings shall be planted in accordance with the open space standards of the Planning Authority and completed to phase with the adjacent dwellinghouses in accordance with a programme to be submitted to and agreed in writing with the Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development. The scheme shall thereafter be maintained to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority.
- 7. The developer shall ensure that during the construction of the development that all surface water is controlled, treated and discharged under the principles of SUDS all to the satisfaction of the Council as Flood Authority.
- 8. The discharge of any surface water drainage shall be limited to the Greenfield runoff rate as calculated in Section 4.3 of the Flood Risk Assessment within the Environmental Impact Assessment Environmental Statement Vol.3 Technical Appendix A. All discharge rates shall be agreed in writing by the Planning Authority in consultation with the Flooding Team prior to the commencement of any works on site.
- 9. Full drainage calculations and the final layout and depth of the proposed SUDS pond and associated infrastructure to be agreed in writing with the Council as Planning Authority, in consultation with Perth and Kinross Council Flooding Team. The agreed detail shall thereafter be implemented prior to the completion of development.
- Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning Authority the Finished Floor Level of all properties shall be a minimum of 600mm above the 200 year flood level.
- 11. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning Authority, the garden level of all properties shall be a minimum of 300mm above the 200 year flood level.
- 12. Development shall be undertaken in accordance with the CEMP approved under 15/01512/FLM. The CEMP shall be updated and submitted not less than two months prior to the commencement of the second phase and shall

incorporate detailed pollution avoidance and mitigation measures for all construction elements. Thereafter the development shall be fully undertaken in accordance with the CEMP unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning Authority.

- 13. The hours of operation at the construction stage shall be Monday to Friday 07:00 to 19:00 hours, Saturday 08:00 to 13:00 hours and no workings on a Sunday, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Planning Authority.
- 14. Prior to the commencement of development details of all front driveway screening shall be submitted to the Planning Authority for further approval. The agreed detail shall be thereafter implemented prior to the occupation of each dwelling and permanently maintained thereafter.
- 15. No works which include the creation of trenches or culverts or the presence of pipes shall commence until measures to protect animals from being trapped in open excavations and/or pipe and culverts are submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The measures may include creation of sloping escape ramps which may be achieved by edge profiling of trenches/excavations or by using planks placed into them at the end of each working day and open pipework greater than 150 mm outside diameter being blanked off at the end of each working day.
- 16. Lighting will be designed, and positioned in such a way as to prevent light spillage into adjacent watercourses and woodland.
- 17. No development, including earth moving, shall take place or material or machinery brought on site until protective fencing and warning signs have been erected on site in accordance with an approved Construction Method Statement. All protective fencing and warning signs will be maintained during the construction period in accordance with the approved details.
- 18. Where it is intended to create semi-natural habitats, all species used in the planting proposals as detailed in the landscape plans shall be locally native species of local provenance unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local Planning Authority.
- 19. All landscape maintenance measures shall be carried out in accordance with the details contained in the landscape plans as already submitted with the planning application and agreed with the Planning Authority.
- 20. All trees to be retained shall be protected in accordance with BS 5837 2012 Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction prior to any works commencing on site, and shall remain in place until all construction is completed.

21. All plant or equipment shall be so enclosed, attenuated and/or maintained such that any noise therefrom shall not exceed Noise Rating 35 between 0700 and 2300 hours daily, or Noise Rating 25 between 2300 and 0700 hours daily, within any neighbouring residential property, with all windows slightly open, when measured and/ or calculated and plotted on a rating curve chart.

#### **Justification**

The proposal is considered to comply with the Development Plan and there are no other material considerations that would justify a departure therefrom.

#### **Informatives**

- 1. This planning permission will last only for three years from the date of this decision notice, unless the development has been started within that period. (See section 58(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended).
- 2. Under Section 27A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) the person undertaking the development is required to give the Planning Authority prior written notification of the date on which it is intended to commence the development. A failure to comply with this statutory requirement would constitute a breach of planning control under section 123(1) of that Act, which may result in enforcement action being taken.
- 3. As soon as practicable after the development is complete, the person who completes the development is obliged by Section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) to give the Planning Authority written notice of that position.
- 4. The applicants are advised that they must apply to the Roads Authority, for construction consent to form a new street. Please contact The Construction and Maintenance Manager, The Environment Service, Perth and Kinross Council, The Atrium, Glover Street, Perth.
- 5. Please consult the Street Naming and Numbering Officer, The Environment Service, Perth and Kinross Council, Pullar House, 35 Kinnoull Street, Perth PH1 5GD.
- 6. The applicant is advised that the granting of planning consent does not guarantee a connection to Scottish Water's assets. The applicant must make a separate application to Scottish Water Planning & Development Services team for permission to connect to the public wastewater system and/or water network and all their requirements must be fully adhered to.

- 7. No work shall be commenced until an application for building warrant has been submitted and approved.
- 8. The development shall be in accordance with the Council's Developer Contributions and Affordable Housing Policy approved in April 2016 which requires a 25% allocation of affordable units within the development all to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority.
- 9. All domestic properties require an appropriate storage area for a minimum of 3 x 240 litre bins (1 for general waste, 1 for garden & food waste and 1 for dry mixed recyclates/paper) and suitable access/surface to wheel the bins from the storage area to the kerbside where they must be presented for collection.

  Bin Dimensions

Capacity (litres) Width (mm) Height (mm) Depth (mm) 240 580 1100 740

- 10. The applicant is reminded that, should any protected species be present a licence may be required from Scottish Natural Heritage to disturb a protected species. Failure to obtain a licence may constitute a criminal act under the Habitats Regulations and penalties are severe for non-compliance.
- 11. The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as amended, it is an offence to remove, damage or destroy the nest of any wild birds while that nest is in use or being built. Planning consent for a development does not provide a defence against prosecution under this act.
- (3) Proposal of Application Notice (PAN)
  - (i) 17/00007/PAN BENDOCHY Change of use of agricultural land to game bird farm and associated moveable shelters and infrastructure at land 400 metres North East of West Myreriggs Farm, Myreriggs Road, Bendochy Report 17/298

Members noted the issues identified by the Interim Head of Planning's report.

~~~~~